Town of Barnstable
COMMUNITY PRESERVATION COMMITTEE

www.town.barnstable.ma.us/CommunityPreservation
Email: CommunityPreservationCommittee@town.barnstable.ma.us

Committee Members
Lindsey B. Counsell — Chair  Stephen Robichaud - Vice Chair — Historical Commission
Terry Duenas — At Large * Stephen Robichaud— Planning Board Lee — Conservation Commission ¢ Vacant — Recreation Commission

Monday, October 20, 2025
Annual Public Hearing APPROVED Minutes
367 Main Street, Hyannis, MA — 2nd Floor Hearing Room

5:30 PM
Lindsey Counsell — Chair Present
Tom Lee — Vice Chair Present
Terry Duenas Present
Stephen Robichaud Present
Katherine Garofoli Present from 6:15 p.m.
Deborah Converse Present
Barbara Debiase Absent
Farley Lewis Absent

Call to Order:

Vote to Open the Public Hearing:
The motion of Lindsey Counsell was seconded by Tom Lee to open the CPC FY26
Annual Public Hearing. Aye (6) No (0). Motion carried.

Notice of Recording:

With a quorum present, Chair Lindsey Counsell called the meeting to order at 5:30 pm
and read: “Please note that tonight’s meeting is recorded and broadcast on Channel 18
and, in accordance with MGL Chapter 30A, s.20, | must inquire whether anyone else is
taping this meeting and to please make their presence known.” No one present was
recording the meeting.

Chair Counsell stated that this is a public hearing and comments and questions are
welcome on the needs, possibilities and resources of the Town as they relate to the
following Community Preservation Act categories for fiscal year 2026: Community
Housing, Historic Resources, Open Space and Recreation. He said that a full copy of
the draft Community Preservation Committee (CPC) Plan is available for review on the
CPC Website.

Public Comment:

Ms. Kelley Grant, Barnstable Land Trust, expressed her appreciation to the town and
residents for continued support and acknowledging the vital role that the Community
Preservation Act (CPA) funding source plays in the community by investing in the
protection of our drinking water quality and ponds. She said CPA funds help preserve

community character providing opportunities for people to stay connected with the

367 Main Street, Hyannis, MA 02601
Phone: 508-862-4749 Fax: 508-862-4782



http://www.town.barnstable.ma.us/CommunityPreservation

natural world. She noted that studies have shown that allocating funds for the protection
of priority natural areas brings multiple financial and health related benefits to the town
and its residents and provides a significant return on investment. Additionally, she said
through partnerships with organizations such as Barnstable Land Trust (BLT), CPA funds
leverage significant private fund raising as well as Federal and State funds, making a
much greater impact in the community. She encouraged everyone to get out and take
advantage of the wonderful trails in town, scenic views and recreational opportunities
that are made possible through the CPA funding source. She said that continued
support is appreciated.

Informational Speakers:

Barnstable Community Preservation Committee — Chairman Lindsey Counsell
Chair Counsell narrated a PowerPoint presentation that highlighted Barnstable CPA-
funded projects, both town and private. He listed the CPC members and their affiliations
with other Town boards. He noted that legislation is based on the Community
Preservation Act, Chapter 44B, passed in 2000 that was adopted in 2004 in Barnstable
and listed the four main categories of funding: preserving open space, preserving historic
sites, creating affordable housing and developing outdoor recreation facilities. He noted
that CPA is funded by the 3% local surcharge property tax and distributions through the
state based on what the town has taken collected with a small amount of interest income
also generated. He said that since 2005, Barnstable CPA funding has been evenly
distributed between the major categories.

Chair Counsell identified changes adopted to the CPC application process last fiscal
year and incorporated into the Handbook saying a determination of eligibility from the
Massachusetts Historical Commission is formally required prior to CPC Application for
Historic Preservation funds to ensure that projects are eligible. Also, the execution of a
grant agreement outlining the terms of the grant has been established.

Chair Counsell continued narrating the PowerPoint Presentation:
Eligible Uses for Open Space CPA Funds were noted as acquisition, protection of
drinking water, protection of Zone | areas and rehabilitation and restoration. The
following CPA Open Space projects were displayed and discussed:
e Smith’s Creek - Acquisition of 5.5 acres of open space by Orenda Wildlife with a
conservation restriction granted to the Town of Barnstable.
e Cotuit Highgrounds — Acquisition of 10 acres of open space by Barnstable Land
Trust with a conservation restriction granted to the Town of Barnstable.
e Santuit Woodlands — Acquisition of 5.84 acres of open space by Barnstable Land
Trust with a conservation restriction to the Town of Barnstable linking to other
open space property owned by Barnstable Land Trust with walking trails.

Eligible Uses for Recreation CPA Funds were noted as new playgrounds, trails, parks
and fields. The following CPA Recreation projects were displayed and discussed:

e Luke’s Love Playground Boundless Playground

e Marstons Mills Pickleball/Tennis Courts, a very popular and well-used facility

Eligible Uses for Historic Preservation Funds were noted as preservation, restoration,
and rehabilitation of historic resources and artifacts. The following CPA Historic
Preservation projects were displayed and discussed:

367 Main Street, Hyannis, MA 02601
Phone: 508-862-4749 Fax: 508-862-4782



e Zion Union Historic Museum/Chapel Restoration — restoration of a Town-owned
building housing a privately-owned museum that is very popular and interesting.

e West Barnstable Railroad Depot — restoration of the 1900s railroad depot original
tile roof as well as other historic building features.

Eligible Uses for Community Housing Funds were noted as the acquisition, renovation of
existing affordable housing units, and programs in support of affordable housing. In
2022, the CPC voted to refer all new Community Housing projects to the Affordable
Housing Trust. The following completed Affordable Housing Trust projects were
displayed and discussed.
e Linnell Landing — 50 Yarmouth Road, Hyannis — Affordable Housing Trust grant of
$500,000 — 15 units created, 5 affordable units subsidized.
e 850 Falmouth Road, Hyannis — Affordable Housing Trust grant of $1,300,000 — 65
units created, 10 affordable units subsidized.

Chair Counsell noted that CPA appropriations for FY 2025 totaled $2,739,000 and listed
the 7 projects funded in FY 2025.

Chair Counsell noted that $21,137,367 is available in CPA funding for FY 26 saying that
Mr. Mark Milne, Director of Finance, will be providing a breakdown of that fund next.

CPC members discussed their accomplishments, appreciation of their opportunity to
serve on CPC, and their appreciation of Chair Counsell’s service to CPC for over 20
years.

Public Comment/Questions
None.

Mr. Mark Milne, Director of Finance, Town of Barnstable — CPA Fund Update

Mr. Milne narrated a PowerPoint presentation providing a financial update on the

Community Preservation Fund. Slides included and explained were as follows:
e FY 25 Revenue and Expenses as of June 30, 2025

Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2025

Continuing Appropriations as of June 20, 2025

Fund Balance by Program Area as of June 30, 2025

Community Preservation Fund Debt as of June 30, 2025

Current Available Balances by Program Area as of September 30, 2025

Potential Projects in the Pipeline

10 Year Revenue Trends

Debt Service Examples

CPC Member Steve Robichaud commended Mr. Milne on the health of the debt service
and his efforts related to the interest that the cash on hand is earning. Mr. Robichaud
noted that the Potential Projects slide is very helpful and would like to keep this list
updated going forward saying it is a visual of what could be coming to the CPC in the
near future. Mr. Milne confirmed that the current available balance less the identified
potential project costs would bring the fund down to $7.8M CPA cash on hand if allocated
at the same time. Mark Milne said that through annual updates to the committee, he
can act as an advisor on how aggressive CPC wants to be with funding programs
referring to his slide with debt service examples to fund a comprehensive finance

367 Main Street, Hyannis, MA 02601
Phone: 508-862-4749 Fax: 508-862-4782



program for a larger project. There was discussion regarding a potential bond for
playgrounds of about $10-$15M to get the playground projects funded and completed
more quickly. Mr. Milne explained the process would require CPC to work with DPW to
identify locations and costs and bring a proposal back to CPC for review and approval
with input from Mr. Milne on the financial components. If the committee approves a
comprehensive playground project, it would be referred to the Town Council through the
Town Manager for consideration of appropriating those funds and issuing a bond. Mr.
Milne noted that CPC would not want to go higher than 50% of annual revenue because
there could potentially be a decline in the state trust fund distribution and other
possibilities reducing annual revenue in a bad economy saying CPC loses budget
flexibility the more annual revenue that is locked into a payment, limiting future awarding
authority. It was discussed that a bid for multiple projects may be more favorable as one
large project.

Public Comment/Questions
None.

CPC Member, Katherine Garofoli, arrived at the meeting at 6:15 p.m.

Ms. Pam Brown — Federated Church — Unitarian Cemetery Restoration

Ms. Brown narrated a PowerPoint presentation saying she is pleased to be able to share
this project made possible with CPA funds. She noted that conservation work is 80%
complete and could be finished by the end of 2025. Ms. Brown explained that the
Unitarian Cemetery is a historic burial ground established in 1830 in downtown Hyannis
and has been saved by CPA grant funds. She depicted pictures of the cemetery from
2016 before the restoration work showing broken and fallen stones noting that the
Barnstable Police in their 2016 letter of support for CPA funding called the cemetery a
hot spot for unwelcome and criminal activity. The initial CPA grant in 2017 paid for
fencing to define the space and deter trespassers and she displayed before and after
pictures of the fencing and gates saying that the cemetery is open to visitors during the
day. The 2017 grant also paid for a condition assessment and included a list of who was
buried in the cemetery and a map of where their stones are located saying there were no
records prior to this. Ms. Brown depicted a slide showing the spreadsheet that lists over
600 burials and the corresponding location map. She said that granite markers will be
placed to define the sections with the section letter. She noted that both documents are
available to the public on the Federated Church website along with a brief history of the
burial ground. The Condition Assessment Report completed in 2024 provided a formal
overview of the cemetery including photos of significant stones with 270 stones identified
in need of conservation. The report outlined the treatment required to restore each stone
and the estimated cost. Ms. Brown said that CPC awarded funds for the final phase in
January of 2025 and restoration work began in May. She depicted slides of the
consultant’s tools to reset the stones and provided several before and after slides noting
that after the application of cleaning solution, the brightness of the stones will continue to
improve and is protected from algae growth for 2 — 4 years after treatment. Ms. Brown
said that there have been guided tours of the burial ground offered and a sign will be
posted to acknowledge the town’s commitment to preservation. Ms. Brown invited
everyone to visit and appreciate the history and art in the burial ground.

367 Main Street, Hyannis, MA 02601
Phone: 508-862-4749 Fax: 508-862-4782



Public Comment:

Ms. Brown confirmed that there will be no additional interments. Ms. Jacquie Counsell
inquired what the biological solution is that is being used to clean the stones. Ms. Brown
said it is a special formula that will clean but not harm the gravestone. Steve Robichaud
called this a good use of CPA funds with a tangible result and public benefit.

PAUL GRAVES Senior Project Manager DPW — CCRT - PHASES 3 AND 4

Mr. Graves noted that the Town of Yarmouth also is working on the Cape Cod Rail Trail
(CCRT) project as well as Mass DOT. He narrated a PowerPoint presentation that
depicted a map of the project areas for the rail trail noting that the black line shown at the
right side of the map is Phase 3 running from Yarmouth to Mary Dunn Road, Barnstable.
He noted that the proposed route for Phase 4 of the rail trail is a much longer portion and
is shown by the yellow line on the map. Mr. Graves explained that Phase 3 is currently
in construction and 20% complete, with Phase 4 of the project in the early design stages.
He said that in 2023, CPA funds in the amount of $195,000 were appropriated by the
Town Council to complete the design and bidding of Phase 3 which has been completed.
Additionally, Mr. Graves noted that $300,000 in CPA funds were allocated for Phase 4
design, saying that DPW also received a Mass Trails Grant for the town to fund the
project. Mr. Graves provided a breakdown of Phase 3 work that has been completed
with CPA funding: design, permitting, bidding; and depicted a view of the current
condition of an area of the rail trail that is 20% completed with one course of pavement.
He said the rail trail will be even more beautiful once vegetation along the trail fills in. Mr.
Graves noted the Phase 4 work that has been completed: land surveying, initial
environmental reviews, preliminary layout plans, and MassDOT project approval. He
said confirmation has also been received that MassDOT will fund construction when the
time comes, noting however, that the state funding is sourced from the federal
government. Paul said the completion date is anticipated to be February of 2031. He
noted that a much greater portion is in the Town of Yarmouth saying that there will be a
bridge spanning Willow Street, railroad bridges that will need modification, and utility
work. He said that the portion that is in Barnstable is primarily within the Wildlife
Management area and will not be as complex. Mr. Graves said that the town has a
website dedicated to Phase 3 and 4 of the CCRT project.

There was CPC member discussion regarding the timeline of 2031 for completion of
Phase 3 and Mr. Graves explained that MassDOT along with the town, is eager to
complete this project, but MassDOT has very rigorous procedures and processes that
are time consuming. Paul said that he hoped that Phase 4 would not be too far behind
Phase 3 but could not provide an estimate. He confirmed that state funding for Phase 3
is secure from actions that could be taken at the federal level.

Public Comment/Questions
None

DPW Richard Ventrone, Senior Architect, CPA Projects — Recreation Project

Mr. Ventrone narrated a PowerPoint presentation that depicted three Town of Barnstable
recreation projects supported with CPA funds: West Barnstable Lukes Love, Centerville
Playground and Osterville Playground.

Mr. Ventrone explained that Lukes Love playground work has been complete since 2018
and it is a very well-loved destination playground. He explained the use of CPA funding .

367 Main Street, Hyannis, MA 02601
Phone: 508-862-4749 Fax: 508-862-4782



for the renovation of Lumbard Field at the site, saying as a part of that work, the
playground was relocated behind the Old Selectman’s Building with improvements to the
parking lot as well. He said playground equipment was refurbished with new surfacing,
noting that modern surfaces are very expensive but are made softer to absorb falls. He
depicted before and after images of Lukes Love playground, highlighting the
improvements.

Next, Mr. Ventrone explained that the Centerville playground is a current project that has
taken a few years to begin due in part to issues relating to the retaining wall on site that
needed replacement. Richard displayed a site plan pointing out the location of the
playground, proposed softball field and the parking that was reconfigured. ADA
accessibility is also being provided by raising the level of the site by 3 feet, greatly
increasing the area of level ground available and alleviating the ADA accessibility issues
that exist. He explained that additionally, an elevated walkway will be built to get to the
playground to replace the eroded path noting there is a popular candy store across the
street from this access point to the playground. Mr. Ventrone depicted several
renderings of the playground design noting its ocean theme that includes a shipwreck
play structure as well as shade, seating and picnic areas. Mr. Ventrone explained that to
help formulate ideas for the design, DPW worked with a local advisory committee.

Mr. Ventrone explained that local residents joined DPW in the designing of the Osterville
playground. He noted the playground is funded with CPA and CIP funds allocated by
Town Council in 2023 with an additional CPA funding request having been recently
approved and referred to Town Council for appropriation next month. He said that the
Osterville playground project is at the end of construction documents and will be ready
for bidding in November 2025 with a completion date of Fall of 2026. He depicted a site
plan showing the location of the tennis/pickleball courts in relation to the playground. A
rendering of the playground showed a compass rose-themed we-go-round and climbing
structures in the ocean themed playground describing each piece of play equipment in
the two age grouped areas. Mr. Ventrone noted the vibrant colors and well-toned
musical instrument components shaped as bells, reeds and mushrooms. He said there
is one gated entrance to the playground to provide a level of comfort for parents and said
both Centerville and Osterville will become destination playgrounds for not only
residents, but visitors from other communities as envisioned by the advisory group.

There was CPC member discussion regarding the expected lifespan of the play
structures and poured surface materials and Mr. Ventrone noted that maintenance is key
and the equipment is designed to last 25 years and is made of components that can be
replaced. There was discussion regarding the timelines and whether there could be a
way to shorten the process. Mr. Ventrone noted that the different views of the same
rendering were produced in-house and useful in the ability to visualize and come to a
group consensus. There was discussion about using existing designs and using them at
another location in Barnstable. Mr. Mark Marinaccio, Town Architect, noted that
Barnstable has 7 villages and each has its own character saying DPW works with local
civic groups who have strong ideas making their local playground specific for that village.
Mark said that the playground consultant is an expert who works to weed out equipment
ideas that do not meet safety standards and companies with products that do not hold
up. CPC members expressed appreciation for Mark Marinaccio’s hard work and patience
explaining DPW applications before the CPC. Mr. Ventrone added that Mark is a good
leader who encourages collaboration. ¢

367 Main Street, Hyannis, MA 02601
Phone: 508-862-4749 Fax: 508-862-4782



Public Comment/Questions

Amar, a very young Hyannis resident, asked if the DPW planned to take down the
Hyannis West playground. Mr. Marinaccio explained that DPW gets their orders from the
Town Council through the Town Manager and that all the projects DPW works on are
brought up through a Capital Improvement Plan. He said there are no current plans to
take down the Hyannis West playground and that the schools tend to take care of their
own on-site playgrounds. Chair Counsell noted that it appeared the next playground on
the list for the coming year may be located at the old Marstons Mills school property.

CPC member Katherine Garofoli asked Amar if he is hoping for a new playground in
Hyannis and he said yes if it is better. Amar’s mom said she lives in Hyannis and is a
native Cape Codder and asked when there will be a playground for Hyannis. She
explained that school playgrounds are not available during school hours, but there are
parents in Hyannis who have pre-school aged kids that need a local playground they can
use during school hours. She noted that the park at JFK can be difficult with wind
whipping the sand. She explained that she had recently travelled to Ithica, New York
and experienced a nature-based community garden playground that is much less costly
than the ones being built in Barnstable. Ms. Garofoli recommended that she reach out to
the Town Council representative for Hyannis and the Hyannis Civic Association to initiate
conversations because she is likely not the only person who has this concern and
interest. Mr. Robichaud said CPC should be seriously considering a bond that would
fund a comprehensive playground project rather than funding playgrounds one at a time.

Chair Counsell noted that public comment can be submitted through the CPC website.
Vote to Close the Annual Public Hearing

The motion of Katherine Garofoli was seconded by Stephen Robichaud to close
the public hearing and to adjourn. Aye (7) No (0). Motion carried.

List of documents/exhibits used by the Committee at the meeting:

Exhibit 1 -CPC Annual Public Hearing Agenda, October 20, 2025

Exhibit 2 — PowerPoint presentation — CPC Annual Meeting FY26

Exhibit 3 - PowerPoint presentation — Financial Update - Community Preservation Fund
Exhibit 4 - PowerPoint presentation — Federated Church -Unitarian Burial Ground
Exhibit 5 - PowerPoint presentation - Cape Cod Rail Trail Update — DPW

Exhibit 6 — PowerPoint presentation - Town of Barnstable Recreation Projects - DPW

Respectfully submitted,

Ellen M. Swiniarski

Community Preservation Coordinator
Planning & Development Department

Please Note: The list of matters is those reasonably anticipated by the Chair which may be discussed at
the meeting. Not all items listed may be discussed, and other items not listed may also be brought up for
discussion to the extent permitted by law. It is possible that, if it so votes, the Committee may go into
Executive Session for specified allowable reasons. The Committee may also act on items in an order other
than they appear on this agenda.

* Public files are available for viewing during normal business hours at the Community Preservation

office located at 367 Main Street, Hyannis, MA

367 Main Street, Hyannis, MA 02601
Phone: 508-862-4749 Fax: 508-862-4782



